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Westover Church lies a. little south of Route 5, about & miles east of
the junction of Route 5 and Route 156, in a grove of trees above Herring
Creek, a branch of the nearby James, and is approached by a lane through
ficlds. The rectangular brick church measures 60' 6" X 28' on the interiod
and is laid in Flemish bond with glazed headers above the bevelled water
table. The use of glazing is less regular in the front gable than in the
body of the building. English bond is employed below the water table, and
gueen closers mark the jambs and the cormers. Yellowish rubbed brick
sugrests quoins at the four corners of the building, and the same type bricl
marks the jambs of the four windows on the north side and the three windows
farthest from the chancel on the south, The jambs of the south window
nearest the chancel, originally the south doorway, were replaced when the
doorway was altered into a window. The rounded arches laid in a double
course of rowlocks above the north and south windows replace what were
probably originally segmental arches. The gallery window in the west end
with a rounded arch of rubbed brick in fulls and double halves is a modern
replacement, as is the west doorway with its segmental arched pediment,
semi-cirecular arched opening, tympanum with glazed headers and shallow
pilasters of rubbed brick. The east end has been greatly altered, and the
present door, windows and surrounding areas are post-colonial. The side
walls are generally in good condition. The present clipped gable wooden
shingle roof with the kick and the modillioned cornice are a recent restora-
tion by Orinm M. Bullock, Jr., of Baltimore, although the roof trusses are
original, This roof replaces a roof with deep eaves and Italianate brackets
dating from 1867,

The present intericr of the church bears little resemblance to the

colonial interior. The west gallery and the vestry in the east were added
in 1867. At the same time, the floor was raised from its original level,
so that there are now several steps under the gallery. Furthermore, in

1970, Mr. Bullock replaced the late-nineteenth century tongue and groove
ceiling with a segmentally arched plaster ceiling. :

Westover Church owns several fine pieces of silver lncludlng a paten,
chalice and cover made in London in 1694-95 and donated by Sarah Braine,
and a chalice and paten made in London in 1731-32, which was possibly made
by George Jones, ' ‘
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Westover Church is important not only for its numercus historical
associations, but because it is an excellent example of the rectiiincar E
form of colonial Virginia church architecture. The picturesquely sited
building has long been a familiar landmark along Virginia's historic
Route 5.

The Parish of Westover is one of the oldest in the country,
being recognized in colonial records as ecarly as 1625, No church building
is known to have existed at this time, however. The parish originally
included land on both sides of the James River, but the boundaries were
altered several times. The land across the river was lost in the early
1720's, and the boundaries became coterminous with those. of Charles City
County in 1725. The name of the parish, as well as that of the famous
nearby Westover Plantation, came from the West family which was granted the
West Hundred.

The first church of Westover Parish stood a few hundred yards
from the original Westover plantation house, up river from the present
church, This first church's still remaining churchyard contains, among
others, a tombstone with the date 1637 (now obliterated), said to be the
oldest existing stone in Virginia. The present building was constructed
in 1731. The church was abandoned for nearly 30 years after 1805 as a
result of the Disestablishment, during which time it often served as a barn;
It is also said to have been used as a stable by Federal Troops during the
War Between the States.

The church has undergone several renovations beginning in 1867
when most of the interior and possibly the roof were replaced. The latest
restoration was undertaken by Orin M. Bullock, Jr., of Baltimore and
involved the replacement of the roof, cornice and segmentally arched ceiiing.
The west moulded brick doorway and gallery window had been restored in
1956.

Presidents William Henry Harrison and Benjamin Harrisom of
Berkeley, and John Tyler of Sherwood Forest, as well as the families of
such well-known nearby plantations as Westover, Shirley and Belle Air have
worshipped in Westover Church.

G.H.
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U.5.G.8. 7' quadrangle {scale: 1:24000)
Westover, Va. 1965
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